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The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without

objection, it is so ordered.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, on

Friday, December I, 1967, the distin
guished Senator from Hawaii [Mr.
INOUYE] is departing for his State on offi
cial business. I ask unanimous consent
that he be excused from attending Sen
ate sessions during his absence.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

ORDER FOR ADJOURNMENT TO
10 A.M. TOMORROW

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that when the Senate
completes its business today, it stand in
adjournment until 10 o'clock tomorrow
morning.

The PRESIDING OFFICER: Without
objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, for
the information of the Senate, it is hoped
by the leadership, the Senate concurring,
that it will stay in session until a reason
ably late hour today in an attempt to get
on with the Senate's business.

Mr. President, I suggest the absence of
a quorum.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The clerk
will call the roll.

The bill clerk proceeded to call the roll.
Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask

unanimous consent that the order for the
quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

CONCLUSION OF MORNING
BUSINESS

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, is
there further morning business?

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr.
LAusCHE in the chair) .. Is there further
morning business? If not, morning busi-
ness is closed. . _.

FEDERAL MEAT INSPECTION ACT
Mr. MANSFIELD; Mr. President, I ask

unanimous consent that the unfinished
business be laid before the Senate.

The PRESIDING. OFFICER.·The bill
will be stated by title.

The ASSISTANT LEGISLATIVE CLERK. A
bill (S. 2147) to clarify and otherwise
amend the Meat Inspection Act, to pro
vide for cooperation with appropriate
State agencies with respect to State meat
inspection programs, and for other pur
poses.

The Senate resumed the consideration
of the bill.

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I
suggest the absence of a quorum.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The clerk
will call the roll.

The bill clerk proceeded to call the
roll.

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Mr. Presi
dent, I ask unanimous consent that the
order for the quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it Is so ordered.

Mr. MONDALE. Mr. President, yester-

day when we opened the debate on the
pending meat inspection bill, known as
the Wholesome Meat Act or the Montoya
bill, I said:

Mr. President, I commend the distinguished
Senator from New Mexico [Mr. MONTOYA] for
his most able and forceful presentation on
behalf of the Committee on Agriculture and
Forestry.... I think the Senator does him
self an injustice In so doing because we are
·now reporting the Montoya bill with the
Montoya amendments from the Committee
on Agriculture and Forestry.

I further said:
If it were not for the commitment of the

Senator from New Mexico to the principle
that there can be no compromise on the pro
tectlon. of the American consumer, this bill
in its present sound and SUbstantial form
could not be reported. The ability and the
devotion of the Senator from New Mexico to
the pUblic interest has guided this legislation
to the point where hopefulIy It wllI become
the law of the land. Every consumer In the
country owes a debt to the brll1lant leader
Ship of the Senator from New Mexico in con
nection with this matter.

I said that because I believed it then
and I believe it now. I said it because
Senator MONTOYA and I had worked
together almost hourly for several weeks,
to try to fashion the bill which is now
before the Senate.

Therefore, I was understandably dis
turbed this morning to read an article in
the Washington Post, written by Mr.
Drew Pearson, which indicates that the
effort by 8enatorMONTOYA was consid
erably different from that which I
represented.

Among the representations made in
this wholly misleading article-which
grieves me, because I am a great admirer
of Mr. Pearson-was that Mr. MONTOYA
was working with the lobbyist for the
American Meat Institute. The evidence
in support of that statement was the
fact that Mr. Davies was reported to
have been in Senator MONTOYA'S office.

That report is accurate; but what is
not accurate is the implication of the
article; Mr. Davies had been invited to
Senator MONTOYA'S office by Senator
MONTOYA and myself, to ask him, Mr.
Davies, if he would support, and seek to
gain the support of the American Meat
Institute for, an agreement that we had
already reached.

I believe that was entirely proper, and
I am pleased to say that the American
Meat Institute in fact did agree to sup
port the proposal; and I have com
mended them for that position as well.

The article also mentioned the name of
another lobbyist, Mr. Blaine Liljenquist,
but failed to point out that Mr. Liljen
Quist is opposing the bill now before the
Senate, as he opposed the Montoya
amendments before the committee, and
that throughout these proceedings Sen
ator MONTOYA led the fight for a strong
and substantial bill. He led that fight
throughout the negotiations, and in the
committee, and he is leading the fight
again today, as he did yesterday, for a
strong and substantial bill.

If there is any Member of this body
more devoted to the selfiess service of the
public interest than the Senator from
New Mexico, I have not met him. I feel
that I would be completely derelict, after
these weeks of service side by side with

Senator MONTOYA, not to set the record
straight. I regret the misleading nature
of the article.

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I
thank my good friend from Minnesota
for his kind words and his clarification
of the factual situation. I concur in what
he .has said. He has stated the facts as
they did occur during the deliberations,
when he and I were trying to work out
a solution that would be palatable, di
gestible and feasible, while trying to pro
mote the interests of the consumers of
this country.

Certainly this was no secret delved
from the dark alleys of legislative delib
erations. Yesterday, on this floor, I
stated with candor, with openness, and
with all the frankness that I could
muster what we had gone through in
trying to arrive at the bill, as amended,
that we have presented to the Senate
for consideration. I quote from the CON
GRESSIONAL RECORD, November 27, 1967,
page 33861:

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I share the
opinion of my good friend, the Senator from
Minnesota, with reference to these devoted
people who came here prlmarlly to protect
the consumers and to lend of their experi
ence with respect to a provision for helping
the consumers in this country.

At all times while the distinguished Sen
ator from Minnesota and I worked on the
pending bill, we had the bllI on top of the
table, and we invited everybody to come be
fore us.

We wanted to eliminate opposition, and
the only thing we told them was that up
permost In our minds was the knowledge
that we had to have some good effective
legislation for the protection of the con
sumers.

These people came In and consulted with
us, whether they represented the consumer
groups or Industry groups or anybody else.
We gave them all a hearing in our office
sanctuaries or wherever the Senator and I
would meet with respect to the amendments
that have been appended to the pending
legislation.

We had nothing to hide, and we have
nothing to hide now. We feel that the pack
age-If one wants to call it that-that we
have presented here to the Senate repre
sents the best blueprint for action that we
could conceive.

We also had In mind the divergence of
opinion expressed by the other House when
it considered the Purcell bill and the Smlth
Foley bUI.

Our approach was designed to meet the
objective of the consumer first and then to
meet the phllosophlcal differences that ex
Isted in the different approaches that came
before this legislative forum or the other
legislative forum In the House of Repre
sentatives.

With that In mind, and without derogat
Ing the consumer interest and the conSUIIler
objectives, we put together the amendments
which we think are salutary improvements
in the approach that we both had in mind
to accomplIsh the objectives that we desired.

Had there been anything nefarious
about the matter, I would not have made
my statement in the Senate yesterday,
the day before this article appeared in
the paper.

I repeat that while the article is not
an intended exaggeration-I will give
credit to Mr. Drew Pearson for that-it
leaves an implication that is not de
ducible from the facts as they existed.

The clarification that has been oifered
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by the Senator from Minnesota is ldnd,
and I am grateful for it. It represents the
true factual situation.

I mentioned in my speech and ac
knowledged the help of many other
groups that came to us during our
deliberations.

I mentioned the labor unions. I men
tioned Mr. Davies of the American Meat
Institute. I had not met Mr. Davies prior
to the hearing in the Committee on Agri
culture and Forestry. I did not know the
man. I did not know what he repre
sented. I want that fact to be in the
record also.

All in all the Senator from Minnesota
and I have tried to act in good faith to
present a bill that would have the sup
port of the different philosophical bear
ings of the membership of both bodies of
Congress and also a bill which would
have as its prime objective the protec
tion of the American consumer. I believe
we have that kind of bill. I think that
the cooperation we have received from
consumer groups, from industry groups,
and from both Republicans and Demo
crats forebodes a good law for the Amer
ican consumer.

We even had in our office during the
course of these deliberations representa
tives of the Department of Agriculture.
They were present in another room while
the Senator from Minnesota and I were
trying to work out these amendments.
And as we would work them out, we
would ask the personnel of the Depart
ment of Agriculture for their opinion as
to whether these amendments would be
workable in the enforcement and ad
ministration of the law.

Yes, we tried to adhere ,to all the req
uisites that would assure a proper ap
proach and a proper method of legisla
tive engineering in order to arrive at the
kind of bill we thought the consumers
were entitled to and that Congress would
approve.

We also had in mind the feeling of the
House of Representatives when it de
liberated ove;.. the Purcell bill and had
turned down the Smith-Foley bill.

We were trying to reconcile in our bill
the viewpoints that might arise. and
might through a divergence of opinion
affect the deliberations in the House of
Representatives when the bill went to
conference.

We tried in the utmost to present a
finished product here that would flnd ac
ceptance in both bodies of Congress and
still subserve the primary objective__the
protection of the consumer.

I hope this colloquy and these observa
tions which the Senator from Minnesota
and I have made this morning will clear
the air of any doubt and set the record
straight.

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, I have
not had the time nor the opportunity to
read the article to which reference was
made by the Senator from Minnesota
and which the Senator from New Mexico
has just discussed.

From the brief description that has
been given, however, and the context in
which these remarks were made, I sub
scribe to the views and the declarations
which were made and expressed by both
Senators who have spoken on this sub-

ject. I associate myself with the general
line of thinking they have expressed.

How are legislators to legislate if they
do not have access to information as to
the impact of a given proposal on a busi
ness or industry? Lobbyists legislative
representatives are not per se outlaws
and despicable characters.

Those who want to stay in business in
Washington and be of any influence and
have any impact on legislation must be
truthful with people. We have to get in
formation from trade associations, in
dividuals, businessmen, and corporations
and present it here on the floor, as the
Senator from New Mexico and the Sen
ator from Minnesota have so ably done
in this jointly sponsored measure that
they have submitted to the Senate for
action.

Lobbyists and representatives are a
legitimate and major source of informa
tion. We rely on such information in
wholesale fashion in hearings. Often in
hearings when a bill is going to be re
vised and when several bills become
joined and made into one, problems arise
on which consultation should be had.

Yesterday I presented a COpy of a re
cent letter written by the president of a
trade association addressed to the chair
man of the Committee on Agriculture
and ForestrY. This letter expressed con
cern about section 14 of the pending bill.
It was a legitimate expression of concern
properly and frankly made and fortifled
by a course of logic. This expression of
concern impelled the Senator from New
Mexico to create legislative history on
this section so that it would be circum
scribed by some limits and so that the
true intent of that language would be
known.

In the process of legislating, we can
n.ot act in a vacuum and neither can any
other legislative body. We must be the
recipients and the analyzers and the
weighers of testimony and of the views
that are presented to us at every point
and then make our decision.

There are some legislative representa
tives perhapgand some lobbyists who
violate the law, or try to do so, but per
se they are not that kind of people. The
presumption is that they are forthright
and that they are presenting informa
tion which is of use to Senators engaged
in composing a bill. Those Senators then
in turn pass it on to the rest of us for
such scrutiny and consideration as we
might want to give it, and we can dis
regard it entirely if we wish to do so.

I reaffirm my belief as to the careful
scrutiny to which this bill has been sub
mitted by its authors and sponsors. I
am grateful for the dedication and the
great deal of work that has been ex
pended by them in the process of placing
the bill before the Senate in the form in
which it now exists.

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I thank
the Senator for his very kind words.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I rise to
urge favorable action on the pending
bill.

The proposal is of great interest' to
milllons of consumers in my home State
and across the Nation. AlthoUgh the
State of New York has very flne controls
with respect to the intrastate production

of meat andmeatproQUCts, the dis
closures which :we all know about which
were made in Upton Sinclair's famous
novel "The Jungle" still, even though the
novel was written 60 years ago, raise
worries in everybody's mind.

We have had very serious cases of
the adulteration of meat and meat prod
ucts in certain areas of this country. The
situation has caused a great deal of
alarm.

The meat and meat product industry
in New York. State is a very large in
dustry. New York state has 10 percent
of the Nation's population, and it con
sumes almost $2 billion worth of meat
and meat prodUCts annually.

Mr. President, the pending legislation
very properly proposes to give to the
States an opportunitY-,·where necessary,
to reform their own systems to conform
with Federal standards, and the Federal
Government will help with the cost of
doing that job, It seems .to me that this
is a bill very much in the consumers' in
terest, and I hope very much that the
Senate will approve It.

Mr. President, I wish to compliment
Senator MONTOYA and Senator MONDALE,
who have collaborated in perfecting a
bill with no deeply vested. pride of au
thorship, but with an eye to the public
interest. An accomplishment of this na
ture is always a great satisfaction to peo
ple such as myself, who have served in
both the Senate and the House. I have
heard univer&~l approval qf the way in
which they reconciled their ideas With
the resulting bill which is before the
Senate today. .. ..

I should'like. to join other Senators
in expressing appreciation, because we
all cannot work on everything with the
detail with which they have worked upon
this matter, asI and others do on other
matters. When men give a matter the de
votion which they have exhibited, we are
grateful. .

Mr. President, I understand that the
Senator from Nebraska has an amend...
ment to the bill,which he has been gra
cious enough to let me see, and I wish
to ask a question or· two of· the manager
of .the bill. when the amendment is sub
mitted. Other than that, I express great
satisfaction with the bill - as· it now
reads.

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I thank
the distinguished Senator from New York
for his flne observations and for his great
contribution to the debate on· this bill.
It is superfluous for me to say that the
Senator from New York has always taken
the side of theconsulller and the public
interest in this body; He has an enviable
record in that respect. Certainly, his sup
port is most welcome and needed with
respect to this bill.

The PHESIDING. OFJ:i'!CER (Mr.
HOLLINGS in the chair) ; Who yields time?

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I yield
2 minutes to the Senator from Ohio.

Mr. LAUSCHE. Mr, President, I am a
cosponsor of the bill. I wish to reaffirm
my conviction that the objectives sought
by the bill as originally presented are
sound.. I subscribe· to. the changes that
have peen made, after surveys were made
seeking to determine what theImpact of
the. bill would be on d~~erent types of
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meat producers and what its benefits
would eventually be for the consumer.

It is regrettable that this discordant
note has arisen without any foundation
in fact.

I merely asked for the floor. Mr. Pres
ident, to reaffirm my subscription to what
has been done.

Mr. MONTOYA. I thank the Senator
from Ohio for his helpful comments.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Who
yields time?

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I sug
gest the absence. of a quorum, and I ask
unanimous consent that the time be
charged equally to both sides.

The PRESIDING. OFFICER. Without
objection, the time will be charged
equally to both sides.

The clerk will call the roll.
The legislative clerk proceeded to call

the roll.
Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, I ask

unanimous consent that the order for
the quoroum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr;. President, I have
an amendment at the·· desk and I ask
that it be considered at this time.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
amendment w1ll be stated.

The legislative clerk pr.oceeded to state
the amendment. .

Mr. HRUSKA: Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the reading of
the amendment be dispensed with.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection it is so ordered; and, without
objection, theamendmentw1ll be printed
in the RECORD',

The amendment, proposed by Mr.
HRUSKA on behalf of himself; Mr. MIL
LER, Mi'. HANSEN, Mr. MUNDT, Mr. JORDAN
of Idaho, Mr. CuRTIS, Mr. ALLOTT, and
Mr.. DOMINICK, ordered to be printed in
the RECORD, is as follows:

On page 22, line 4, strike out the end
quotes. '

.On page 22. between lines 4 and 5. insert
a new sUbsection·. as follows:

"(e) Not later tharLJanuary 31 of each
year the Secretary shaH submit to the Con
gress a comprehensive and detailed written
report with respect to the administration of
this section during the Immediately preced
ing calendar year. Such report shaH Include,
but shall not be limited to-

"(I) a certification by the'Secretary that
foreign plants exporting carcasses or meat or
meat products referred to in subsection (a)
of this section have complied with all the
inspection, building construction standards,
and all other provisions of this Act and reg
ulation issued thereunder;

"(2) the names and locations of plants li
censed or otherWise. authorized to import
into the United States carcasses or meat or
meat products referred to in subsection (a)
of this section;

"(3) the number of inspectors employed
by the Department of Agriculture In the
calendar year concerned who were assigned
to inspect faclllties subject to inspection un
der this section and the frequency with
which each such faclllty was inspected by
such inspectors; "

"(4) the number of inspectors licensed by
each country. from whIch any imports stlb~

ject to the provisions of thIs section were
imported who were assigned,' during the cal~
endar year concerned, to hilipect"suchim
ports· and the,faclllties .in:" Which. su.chim
ports were handledand. thefrequeIl<?Y :and
effectiveness of such inspections; and

"(5) the total volume of carcasses or
meat or meat products referred to in subsec
tion (a) of this section which was imported
Into the United States durtng the calendar
year concerned by each person, firm, or cor
poration Ilcensed or otherwise authorized to
import such carcasses, meat. or meat prod
ucts, Including a separate itemization of the
volume of each major category of such Im
ports by such person, firm, or corporation
during such year and a detailed report of
rejectiOns of facllltles and prodUCts because
of failure to meet appropriate standards pre
scribed by this Act."

The PRESIDING OFFICER. How
much time does the Senator yield to
himself?

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, I yield
myself 5 minutes.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from Nebraska is recognized for 5
minutes.

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, section
10 of the pending b1ll covers the importa
tion of carcasses, meat, and meat prod
ucts. It also sets out requirements which
must be met by those prodUCts which
are so imported. The requirements in
clude a proper labeling and a lack of
adulteration. The requirements also in
clude the idea that there shall be com
pliance in the plants where the imports
originated,with all of the inspection,
building construction standards, and all
other provisions .of the act applicable to
such articles in' commerce within the
United states.

In general, section 10. undertakes to
impose upon the points oforigin of these
imports brought into this country the
same requirements for wholesomeness,
purity, labeling, and all other items that
are applied to articles which originate
within this country. That is its purpose
and it is.quite comprehensive in that
regard.

Mr. President, I ask unanimous con
sent that the text of a new section 20 as
set forth in section 10 of the bill on page
20, beginning at line 15 and extending to
page 22, line 4, be printed in the RECORD
at this point.

There being no objection, the excerpt
was ordered to be printed in the RECORD,
as follows:

SEC. 20. (a) No carcasses, parts of carcasses,
meat or meat food prodUCts of cattle, sheep,
swine, goats, horses, mUles, or other equines
which are capable of use as human food,
shall be Imported lnto the United States If
such articles are adUlterated or misbranded
and unless they comply with [the inspection
ami other requirements prescribed by regu
lations of the Secretary to assure that the
imported articles have been prepared under
requirements SUbstantially equivalent to
those applicable to the comparable domestic
articles, and otherwise to effectuate the pur
poses of this Act] all the inspection, building
construction standards, and all other pro
visions oj this Act and regUlations issued
thereunder applicable to such articles in
commerce within the United States. All such
imported articles shall, upon entry into the
United States, be deemed and treated as
domestic articles subject to the other pro
visions of this Act and the Federal Food.
Drug, and Cosmetic Act: Provided, That they
shall be marked and labeled as required by
such regUlations for Imported articles: Pro
vided fUrther, That nothing in this section
shall appl1( to any individual who purchases
meat or meat products outside the United
States lor his own consumption except that
the total amount oj such meat or meat
products shall not exceed jifty pounds.

(b) The Secretary may prescribe the terms
and conditions for the destruction of all such
articles which are Imported contrary to this
section, unless (1) they are exported by the
consignee within the time fixed therefor by
the secretary, or (2) In the case of articles
which are not in compliance with the Act
solely because of misbranding, such articles
are brought into compliance with the Act
under supervision of authorized representa
tives of the Secretary.

(c) All charges for storage, cartage, and
labor with respect to any article which is
imported contrary to this section shall be
paid by the owner or consignee, and In
defat1lt of such payment shall constitute a
lien against such article and any other article
thereafter imported under this Act by or for
such owner or consignee.

(d) The knOWing Importation of any arti
cle contrary to thIs section is prohibited.

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, the
present statute with reference to regu
lation of imports of this kind is to be
found as a part of the Tarit! Act. That
statute is title 19 United states Code
1306, and particularly subsections (b)
and (c) therein.

Mr. President, I ask unanimous con
sent that the text of the entire section
as found on pages 44 and 45 of the com
mittee report be printed at this point in
the RECORD.

There being no objection, the excerpt
was ordered to be printed in the RECORD,
as follows:

[19 U.S.C. 1306]

CATTLE, SHEEP, SWINE, AND MEATS; IMPORTA
TION· PRoHmlTED IN CERTAIN CASES

(a) RINDERPEST AND FOOT-AND-MoUTH DIS
EASE.-If the secretary of AgrICUlture deter
mines that rinderpest or foot-and-mouth
disease exists in any foreign country, he
shaH officially notify the Secretary of the
Treasury and give public notice thereof,
and thereafter, and untll the Secretary of
AgriCUlture gives notice In a simllar manner
that such disease no longer eXists in such
foreign country, the importation Into the
United States of cattle, sheep, or other ru
minants, or swine, or of fresh, chllled, or
frozen meat of such animalS, from such
foreign country, is prohibited: Provided,
That wUd ruminants or swine may be im
ported from any such country upon such
conditions, inclUding post entry conditions,
to be prescribed In Import permits or In
regulations, as the Secretary may Impose
for the purpose of preventing the dissemi
nation of said diseases into or within the
United States: And provided further, That
the SUbsequent distribution, maintenance.
and exhibition of such animals In the United
States shall be limited to zoological parks
approved by said Secretary as meeting such
standards as he may by regulation prescribe
for. the purpose of preventing th, dissemi
nation of said diseases into or Within the
United States. The Secretary may at any
time seize and dispose of any such animals
which are not handled In accordance with
the conditions Imposed by him or whIch are
distributed to or maintained or exhibited at
any place In the United States which Is not
then an approved zoological park. in such
manner as he deems necessary for said pur
pose.

[(b) MEATS UNFIT FOR HUMAN FooD.-No
meat of any kind shaH be Imported Into the
United States unless such meat is healthful,
wholesome, and fit for human food and con
tains no dye, chemical, preservative, or In
gredient which renders such meat unhealth
fUl, unwholesome, or unfit for human food,
and unless such meat also complies 'Vith the
rUles and regt1lations made by the Secretary
of Agriculture.. All imported meats shall,
after entry into the United states' in com
pllance with such rules and regulations. be
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deemed and treated as domestic meats wIth
In the meaning of and subject to the pro
visions of the Act of June 30, 1906 (Thirty
fourth Statutes at Large, p. 674), commonly
called the "Meat Inspection Amendment,"
and the Act of June 30, 1906 (Thirty-fourth
Statutes at Large, p. 768), commonly called
the "Food and Drugs Act," and Acts amenda
tory of, supplementary to, or in SUbstitution
for such Act.] 1

(c) REGULATIONs.-The Secretary of Agri
culture is authorized to make rules and
regUlations to carry out the purposes of this
section, and in such rules and regula
tions the Secretary of Agriculture may
prescribe the terms and conditions for the
destruction of all cattle, sheep, and other
ruminants, and swine, and of all meats,
offered for entry and refused admission into
the United States, unless such cattle, sheep,
ruminants, swine, or meats be exported by
the consignee within the time fixed therefor
in such rules and regulations.

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, the ex
tent of inspection and of verifying that
compliance has been had with the exist
ing law and regulations has been set
forth in terms of the personnel involved
and the activity of the oIDcials and em
ployees of the Department of Agriculture.

I shall not pass judgment on the De
partment, nor would I want to criticize
its present enforcement activities on im
ported meat and meat products. It may
be they have had stingy Congresses to
deal with and perhaps appropriations
have not been ample for the purpose at
hand. I shall not get into that too much
on the basis of laying blame anywhere.

However, we are told that there
are six Department of Agriculture in
spectors assigned to some 1,800 plants in
38 nations all over the world. The ratio
is one to 300 plants, and they are scat
tered all over the world. One inspector
for 300 plants means that the inspector
would have to visit a plant a day all
year around without allowing time for
travel or any other business.

In order that the Congress, the public,
and the consumer can be informed as to
what will be done in the future by the
Secretary of Agriculture to see that there
is that compliance required by the bill,
the amendment I propose simply re
quires that a report be made by the Sec-

1 Effective dates for the Wholesome Meat
Act:

The provisions of this Act shall become
effective upon enactment except as provided
in paragraphs (a) through (d):

(a) The provisions of paragraph (b) (1)
and (c) of section 10 and the provisions of
section 20 of the Federal Meat Inspection Act,
as amended by sections 7 and 10 of this Act,
and the provisions of section 18 of this Act
repealing paragraph (b) of section 306 of the
Tariff Act of 1930, shall become effective
upon the expiration of sixty days after en
actment hereof.

(b) The provisions of title I of the Federal
Meat Inspection Act, as amended by this Act,
shall become effective with respect to eqUines
(other than horses) and their carcasses and
parts thereof, meat, and meat food prodUCts
thereof upon the expiration of siXty days
after enactment hereof.

(c) Section 11 of this Act, amending sec
tion 23 of the Federal Meat Inspection Act,
shall become effective sixty days after enact
ment hereof.

(d) Section 204 of the Federal Meat In
spection Act, as added by section 14 of this
Act, shall become effective upon the expira
tion of sixty days after enactment hereof.

retary of AgriCUlture once each year to
cover the preceding calendar year, and
which would embrace certain items:

The amendment would require that
there be-

(1) a certificatlon by the Secretary that
foreign plants exporting carcasses or meat or
meat products referred to In subsection (a)
of this section have compIled with all the
Inspection, building construction standards,
and all other provisions of this Act and regu
lations Issued thereunder;

The report would also require:
(2) the names and locations of plants li

censed or otherwise authorized to import
into the United States carcasses or meat or
meat products referred to In subsection (a)
of this section;

(3) the number of Inspectors employed
by the Department of AgriCUlture in the cal
endar year concerned Who were assigned to
inspect facUlties subject to inspection under
this section and the frequency With Which
each such faclllty was Inspected by such in
spectors;

Fourth:
(4) the number of Inspectors licensed by

each country from Which any imports SUb
ject to the provisions of this section were
Imported who were assigned, during the cal
endar year concerned, to inspect such Im
ports and the faclllties in Which such im
ports were handled and the frequency and ef
fectiveness of such inspections;

As to that subsection in the amend
ment, let me say that it is written in the
report of the Senate, on page 12, in part:

It is not intended that the Imported prod
ucts be Inspected by U.S. inspectors during
their preparation in the foreign country but
it is Intended that the foreign country en
force inspection and other requirements with
respect to the preparation of the products
at least equal to those applicable to prepara
tion of like products at federally Inspected
establishments in the United states, and
that the imported products woUld be SUb
ject to inspection and· other requirements
upon arrival In the United States to Identify
them and further assure their freedom from
adulteration and misbranding at the time of
entry.

Obviously the consumers of America
are entitled to know how many inspec
tors actually are at work in foreign plants
and conditions and effectivenesswlth
which they work which would lay the
foundation by certification of the Sec
retary of Agriculture that such plant is
qualified to send meat into this country
for consumption by our citizens.

The final subsection reads;
(5) the total volume of carcasses or meat

or meat prodUCts referred to in SUbsection
(a) of this section which was imported Into
the United States during the calendar year
concerned by each person, firm, or corpora
tion licensed or otherwise authorized to im
port such carcasses, meat, or meat products,
including a separate itemization of the VOl
ume of each major category of such imports
by such person, firm, or oorporatlon during
such year, and a detalled report of rejections
of faclllties and products because of fallure
to meet appropriate standards prescribed by
the Act.

I believe it is reasonable to assume
that not all plants applying will be able
to comply or will be able to secure certi
fication by the Secretary of Agriculture.
I have an idea that if the inspection ren
dered abroad is as strict as it is in this
country, there will be some plants that

will be l-uled outof eligibility for sending
in the im.ports which they would like to
sell within this country. .

The int.ent· of this amendment is to
assure not only that there will be a
statutory obligation for compliance by
the originating plants· abroad with the
standards and procedures prescribed in
the act, but also that that responsibility
will be discharged. ..

It is one thing to lay the responsibility
on someone or upon a company, it is an
other thing to verify and ascertain that
there has been compliance within the
statute which is used to govern their
activities and their imports.

Mr. President, that is the explanation
of the amendment which I should like
to make at this time. I yield back the
remainder of my time but would be
happy to respond to any questions.

Mr. MILLER. Mr. President, will the
Senator from Nebraska yield?

Mr. HRUSKA. I am happy to yield to
the Senator from Iowa.

Mr. MILLER. The amendment which
has been offered· by the Senator from
Nebraska, myself, and the Senator from
Wyoming [Mr. HANSEN] llnd others, does
not do anything which is not intended to
be done by the act. This was brought out
during extended discussion of the im
port situation on yesterday.

Although the amendment is desig
nated to go elsewhere in the bill, it really
fits with the language on page 20 of the
bill which states in part:

SEC. 20. (a) No carcasses, parts of ,carcasses,
meat or meat food products of cattle, sheep,
swine, goats, horses,mules, or other equines
which are capable of use as· human food,
shall be Imported into the United States If
such articles are adulterated or misbranded
and unless they comply with [the inspection
and other requlrementsprescrlbed by reg
ulations of the Secretary .to assure .that the
Imported articles have been prepared under
requirements substantially equivalent to
those applicable to the comparable domestic
articles, and otherwise to effectuate the
purposes Of this Act] all the inspection,
building construction standards, and all
other provisions ot this Act and regu14ttons
issued thereunder applicable to such articles
in commercewtthtn the United states.

That language is ,very clear. The com
mittee report states. further that· while
we did not intend to belabor the tax
payers of this country by stationing in
spectors on a carcass-by-carcass basis
overseas, we do intend that the foreign
count!}' ~nforce inspection and other re
quirements with resPect to the prepara
tion of products' at least equal to those
applicable to our own. That is our in
tention. There is only one department
that can carry out that intention and
that is the Department of Agriculture.

I should liketo ask the Senator from
New Mexico [Mr. MONTOYA] if the pend
ing amendment does not really fit in with
our intention in connection with the
language as quoted on page 20 of the bill,
where we say that the articles are not
going to be imported unless they comply
with all the inspection and other re
quirements-if it is not our intention
that the Secretary must determine and
certify that they do so comply; otherwise,
they will not come in.

Mr. MONTOYA. Let me say to my
good friend from Iowa that the obUga-
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tion they comply is a positive obligation.
The Secretary, and no one else, must
make that determination. It is implied
in the language of the bill. He is the
one who must satisfy himself that the
standards are adhered to, and that all the
requirements prevailing in the United
States are adhered to by those who seek
to export meat to the United States. The
Secretary of Agliculture must reach that
determination"

Mr. MILLER. Unless he does, they
simply do not cOme in,

Mr. MONTOYA. That is correct.
Mr. MILLER. The pending amendment

fits \vith that concept, in that it requires
a report on the activities of the Depart
ment to implement his very part of the
bill; is that not correct?

Mr. MONTOYA. That is correct.
Mr. MILLER. I thank the Senator

from New Mexico. I also thank the Sena
tor from Nebraska for yielding to me.

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, I yield
myself 3 additional minutes.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from Nebraska is recognized for 3
additional minutes.

Mr. HRUSKA. I should like to ask the
Senator from New Mexico, is it not true
that title 19 of the United States Code,
section 1306, is now the basis for the
Secretary of Agriculture to govern on
the import of meat products.

Mr. MONTOYA. That is correct. The
existing law is found in that section of
the Tariff Actof 1930.

Mr. HRUSKA. So that the act, to
gether with· the regulations which the
Secretary of Agriculture is authorized to
make to carry out the purposes of that
Tariff Act, is the basis which has been in
effect up until now?

Mr. MONTOYA. That is correct.
Mr. HRUSKA. This section is repealed

by the pending bill?
Mr. MONTOYA. Yes.
Mr. HRUSKA. That is, the Tariff Act

section.
Mr. MONTOYA. And the section on

importation that we have in the bill sup
plants it.

Mr. HRUSKA. Supplants it. So that,
really. what is happening, in large meas
ure, is that some of the authority which
the Secretary had by way of following
the regulations which he himself is
promulgating, is now within this form
rather than in the regulations?

Mr. MONTOYA. That is correct.
Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, I yield

back the remainder of my time.
Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I should

like to have about 5 minutes on the bill
or I will submit an amendment, whatever
my colleagues choose.

Mr. President, I should like to ask the
Senator in charge of the bill some ques-

• tions about the amendment..
I might say to him that my reason for

the questions is that there are pending
some bills to impose a quota system
which I consider to be protectionist bills,
not only on meat but also on other prod
ucts. There is quite a big struggle going
on in the country about them. I should
also like to· point out to my colleagues
that we complain very bitterly in terms
of other countries and many European
countries who are not in the meat busl-

ness partic'11arly, but automobiles, for
example, with no tariff barriers to trade
but they claim a road tax on foreign
automobiles in certain European coun
tries, which is quite nettling to us in the
United States.

In view of the fact that this is an
amendment dealing with imports, and
that there is this great struggle going on
here, I should like to ask the Senator
from New Mexico if he would be kind
enough to reply, and the Senator from
Nebraska [Mr; HRUSKA], also, if he
chooses to respond in any way, or to say
anything about it to the following ques
tions: All that I want is assurance that
this is not a protectionist amendment, but
is legitimately designed to implement the
provisions of law. As I understand it, the
Secretary of Agriculture today has regu
lations which are SUbstantially to the
same effect as those contained in section
20 of the bill before us, and those that
would be reported on under this amend
ment.

Mr. MONTOYA. Yes. As I understand
the present law, the Secretary's authority
is derived, as was stated a few minutes
ago, from a provision of the Tariff Act,
Which gives him ample authority to pro
vide inspection procedures for imported
meat. In addition to this-which we did
not mention-the Food and Drug Ad
ministration can step in and examine
this food as it reaches our shores at the
port of entry. There is ample authority
in the Food and Drug Act to vest the
Secretary with additional inspection
procedures and authority therefor.

The amendment here, as offered by the
Senator from Nebraska, in my opinion is
merely a restatement of a provision that
is already in the bill, but directed and
pinpointed specifically to imports.

I refer the Senator from New York to
page 47, section 17, which I ask unani
mous consent to have printed at this
point in the RECORD.

There being no objection, the section
was ordered to be printed in the RECORD,
as follows:

SEC. 17. The Secretary shall annually re
port to the Committee on Agriculture of the
House of Representatives and the Committee
on Agriculture and Forestry of the Senate
With respect to the slaughter of animals sub
Ject to this Act, and the preparation, storage,
handling and distribution of carcasses, parts
thereof, meat and meat food products, of
such animals. and inspection of establish
ments operated in connection therewIth, in
cluding the operations under and effective
ness of this Act.

Mr. MONTOYA. This is the annual re
porting provision which applies to the
inspection provided for in this bill.

The amendment offered by the Sena
tor from Nebraska is pinpointed to the
import provision, which I thin~ is al
ready covered, but to which I offer no
objection anyway.

Mr. JAVITS. The other question is this.
I notice the word "certification" is used
in clause 1, subsection (e) in the amend
ment, referring to certification by the
Secretary. Is that a certification which
he has to make now, or is that some new
certification?

Mr. MONTOYA. On that, I defer to
the Senator from Nebraska [Mr.
HRUSKA).

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, we were
told yesterday in debate that there are
1,800 licensed producers of meat in 38
nations scattered all over the world that
are qualified and eligible to send their
meat products into this country. It is my
understanding this is a license. If not
technically so, it is certainly a license in
fact, because until they satisfy the Secre
tary of Agriculture that they are eligible,
they· cannot bring their meat in. So I
presume the procedure is very much that
which is followed by the Secretary of
Agriculture on import licenses on other
commodities.

Mr. JAVITS. I notice the word "li··
censed" in clause 1, wheI:eln it states,
"names and locations of plants licensed
or otherwise authorized to import."

Is there any licensing system that the
author knows of? .

Mr. HRUSKA. I do not know what the
regulations provide, to be frank. That is
why the language of the amendment is
general in that character. We can use
the word "permit" or "permitted," but
when the words "licensed or otherwise
authorized" were used, it was felt that
covered the entire situation.

Mr. JAVITS. What I am concerned
about is that the amendment may be di
recting an entirely new system of licens
ing and certification Which does not
exist today.

Mr. HRUSKA. That is not being at
tempted.

Mr. JAVITS. May I suggest that it
might be best to change the word
"licensed" to "permitted," so that it re
fers to "names and locations of plants
permitted to import into the United
States," because otherwise the amend
ment might raise a serious question, and
if there is no licensing scheme which is
known at the time we adopt the amend
ment, we either assume one exists or we
create one. If that is not our intention,
let us not put it into the law.

Mr. HRUSKA. The language of the
amendment is in the alternative; it is
not in the conjunctive-"either licensed
or otherwise authorized." The regula
tion power of the Secretary of Agricul
ture, as I understand, would continue.

Mr. JAVITS. I understand, but if we
know of no licensing system, why should
we include the word licensed in this
amendment? If we know of no licensing
system, then are we not importing some
ing that is not so?

Mr. HRUSKA. Very well. I would have
no objection if this section of the amend
ment would read, "names and locations
of plants authorized or permitted to
import into the United States."

Mr. JAVITS. That would suit me.
Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, I ask

unanimous consent that the amendment
be modified accordingly.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, the amendment is so modified.

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Mr.
President. will the Senator ~-ield so that
we might ask for the yeas and nays on
the bill?

Mr. JAVITS. I yield.
Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Mr.

President, I ask for the yeas and nays
on the bill.

The yeas and nays were ordered.
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Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, do we also

understand by the use of the word certi
fication that we are not implying some
new system of licensing, et cetera, but
we are seeking to implement the provi
sions of law which are contained in
20(a), as the Senator from New Mexico
[Mr. MONTOYA] said, and in the report
ing section which is contained in sec
tion 17 on page 47?

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, if the
Senator will yield, that subject and point
were dealt with in a colloquy had be
tween the Senator from Iowa and the
Senator from New Mexico, and that is
the fact.

Mr. JAVITS. Then, that is correct.
The Senator from Nebraska [Mr.

HRUSKA] is always reasonable and hon
Ol'able in his approach.

I would like to ask the Senator from
New Mexico [Mr. MONTOYA] whether, in
his judgment, this amendment carries
out the intent to be an implementation
of the scheme of regulation contained
in the law and will not be in fact some
form of dealing with an import quota or
any limitation of a tariff character,
rather than a real sanitary regulation.

Mr. MONTOYA. It is my opinion that
it will not because, from the discussions
we have had with the Department, they
were going to require adherence to this
type of regulation, anyway. They were
going to impose equal responsibility upon
the foreign producer as they do upon the
domestic producer. So I do not think
there is any leaning toward prejudicial
treatment with respect to the one who
exports to this country.

Mr. JAVITS. Finally, may I ask the
Senator if, as sometimes turns out, we
find other implications in this amend
ment than we can read into it here on
the floor, would the Senator be willing to
tell the Senate that he would be willing
to take that fact into consideration in
conference, because this is a new amend
ment?

Mr. MONTOYA. I will.
Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, if the

Senator will yield, the amendment which
the Senator from Nebraska proposes
simply requires that the Secretary of
Agriculture report what he does under
section 20 of the new act. That is all it
does. It seems to me that is informa
tion which the Senator from New York
would very much like to have, because
if there are any shenanigans, if there is
any chicanery being resorted to, they will
show up in the report made by the Secre
tary of Agriculture.

Mr. JAVITS. I thank my colleague for
his explanation. I think we have straight
ened the matter out in colloquy.

Mr. MONDALE. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. JAVITS. I yield.
Mr. MONDALE. I think. the point

made by the Senator from New York is
well taken. The question of whether
there ought to be quotas on imported
beef is irrelevant--

Mr. JAVITS. To this bill.
Mr. MONDALE. Yes. What we were

seeking to do here-and I think it is
proper on several grounds-is to assure
that the American consumer of meat im
ported from foreign countries. shall be

from plants having slaughtering and
processing standards at least equal to
those we now have in interstate plants,
and it was not intended, and it should
not be implied that we intended, to have
some sub rosa quota system parading
under the title of sanitation.

That is quite apart from the question
of whether there ought to be a quota sys
tem, but it should not be inferred that
there is any such system.

In Minnesota when we try to sell our
milk elsewhere we run up against stand
ards imposed by other States, partic
ularly in the east, so I am quite well
aware of that distinction.

So I am quite aware of the critical
nature of that distinction. .

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. JAVITS. I yield.
Mr. HRUSKA. As one of the principal

sponsors of meat import quota legisla
tion, may I suggest to the Senator from
New York that this amendment is not,
nor is section 20, as far as I am con
cerned, being sponsored as, nor is it in
tended to be, a pretext for reducing im
ports of meats into this country for any
other reason except those reasons set
forth in section 20, to require compliance
with the same standards of production
and handling of meat as required of
domestic processors. I think the language
is very explicit on that point.

I might say in addition that from
time to time, in debate and discussion
of meat import quota bills, questions
arise as to what assurance, if any, we
have that these imports are high quality
products, that they are wholesome, that
they are produced under proper sanitary
conditions, and so forth. My response to
that is that such requirements have al
ways been a section in the Tariff Act,
together with a citation of the regula
tions issl:ed by the Secretary of Agricul
ture. This will be a new citation in
answer to the same question.

Mr. JAVITS. I thank the Senator. I
yield to the Senator from Iowa.

Mr. MILLER. Mr. President, let me
add a footnote to what the Senator from
Nebraska has said.

The Senator from New York knows
that he .and I differ on the matter of
quotas for meat imports. But I do wish
to affirm that there is nothing in this
measure, nor in the intention behind it,
that has anything to do with that type
of protectionism-assuming that that is
a correct word to use with respect to a
quota bill. It does have to do with pro
tectionism, may I say to my friend from
New York, in the sense of protection of
the American consumer. But there
should be no difficulty as far as our trad
ing partners are concerned, because we
are not seeking here .to establish any
higher standards for imported meat
than for our own domestically produced
meat. If some countries or some plants
should feel aggrieved because they have
to match those standards to protect the
American consuming public, and they
wish to retaliate by requiring that the
U.S. exports to their country meet the
same standards that they have for their
country, I think we ought to be ready,
willing, and able to meet such challenges.

But that has nothing to do with im
port quotas.

Mr. JAVITS. I thank the Senator.
Mr. CARLSON. Mr. President, will the

Senator yield?
Mr. JAVITS. I yield to the Senator

from Kansas.
Mr. CARLSON. Mr. President, I just

want to get into this question very
briefly, to state that Kansas has a stat
ute which requires the labeling of all
imported meat sold through retailers.
That act was passed during a 1964 spe
cial session of the legislature, and is
found at Statutes 65-6a 12.

I ask unanimous consent that that
section of the Kansas statutes be printed
in the RECORD as a further contribution
to the discussion of the labeling of im
ported meats offered for sale over the
counter.

There being no objection, the statute
was ordered to be printed in the RECORD,
as follows:

65-6a12. Labeling of imported meats,
pOUltry, eggs and butter offered for sale.
Every retaller .who sells or offers for sale in
the state of Kansas through a meat market,
store or otherwise, any meats, either canned,
frozen or cured, or any poultry, eggs or but
ter, which are the products of any country
foreign to the United States, shall clearly
label such meat, poultry, eggs or butter as
"imported," naming the country of its origin,
which labeling shall be in lettering not less
than one-half inch in-height. As used in this
act: (a) The word "retailer" shall mean a
person regUlarly engaged in the business of
selllng meat, canned, frozen or cured, or
pOUltry, eggs or butter,at retail to the trade
and public as SUCh, and selllng only to the
user or consumer and not for resale; (b)
the word "meat" means the dressed fiesh of
cattle, SWine, horses, sheep or goats but shall
not include fish or products of fish. [L. 1964,
ch. 7, § 1 (Special Session); July 1.]

Mr. JAVITS. I have one further ques
tion for the manager of the bill.

I note that the bill, as to most of its
provisions, is to take effect within 60 days
after its passage. Would the Senator
from New Mexico be willing to assure the
Senate that if it is found that the adap
tations necessary to comply with this
paragraph concerning requirements of
foreign producers, cannot be carried out
within that period withou~ prejudicing
materially the import policy of the coun
try or adversely affecting producers, con
sideration will be given to the question
of time for phasing in? We are dealing
a little bit in the dark here, because we
do not have the industry views on the
matter. There might be a problem in
bringing this into being without destroy
ing or disrupting What is going on now.

The danger which I should like to point
out to the Senator, which concerns me,
involves the Kennedy round, which, as
we all knoW,is a large and very delicate
undertaking. I should not wish us to sUd- •
denly pass something which could im
periI that effort. The Senator will find
out about that· when he goes to confer
ence. At least let us have the understand-
ing that we are agreeable to an open
view on the question of phasing in of
What may be required under this amend
ment, should that be indicated by the
policy of the country.

Mr. MONTOYA.. Mr. President, I am
sure the conference would certainly give
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consideration to that matter. But I am
sure also tha.t it has already been fully
considered by', the Department of Agri
culture.

The PRESIDING OFFICER The Sen
ator's time has expired.

Mr. MONTOYA: I yield 2 additional
minutes to the Senator fiom New York,
and I say to him that this provision was
thoroughly discussed in committee. I am
sure the Department has given consid
eration to, the time aspect within which
they may set in operation the require
ments under this section.

Mr. JAVITS. I am thinking now of the
proposed amendment, and I just wanted
to. be sure. When an amendment is
agreed to on the fioor, there is a great
tmdition 'in· public' life ,that you never
see the abyss at your feet, but always the
one down the road. I do not wish to
stand in the way of the assurances which
have been given, but I did want to be
sure we are. not locked in, so that the
conferees could not move, if it shOUld
be found that the amendment contra
dicts the basic policy or the interests
generally of. the country, but that ::.t
would be understood by all concerned
that while principle is accepted its im
plementation must depend 011 the possi
bility that we may find implications of
which we' are not aware at this'moment.

Mr. MONTOYA. I am sure the Sena
tor from New York has very adequately,
in his usual eloquent way, landmarked
the objectives we have in mind with re
spect to this amendment. I am sure the
fears which he has brought into the dis
cussion are, very adequately allayed by
the dialog which has taken place.

Mr. JAVITS. I feel that way, too, and
I thank the Senator.

I might point out that this is not idle
speculation on my part. There is a big
problem here between the consumers'
interests and the processors' interests, of
fairness and equity as weIl as reciprocity
in terms of what we do in the world. No
one will fight harder than I against these
monkeyshines of nontari1l barriers. In
my judgment, the best posture for us to
fight them elsewhere is to try to avoid
them as much as possible ourselves.

So for both reasons-first, because the
consumer has a burning interest in im
ports which tend to give him an element
of competition in this country in respect
to price, service, quality, and so forth;
and second, because of the tremendous
web of international trade which is in
volved in meat, a very important com
modity. I am glad we have had this col
loquy.

I am obliged to the Senator from Ne
braska for making the modification in
the amendment, and I am reassured as
to the way in which this matter is now
to be handIed.

Mr. MILLER. Mr. President, I yield
myself 2 minutes.

One thing should be made clear as a
result of this colloquy: While there is
no intention to establish what are some
times called nontrade barriers, because
the intent, the language, and the entire
legislative history of the bilI indicate
that we are merely trying to have uni
formity among not only domestic pro
ducers--but also exporters to this coun-

try-no higher or lower standards for
foreign exporters than for domestic pro
ducers--still, because of the increased
requirements that will be established by
the act, some domestic producers will
find that their costs of production will
rise, because they will not otherwise be
able to meet the standards of quality and
sanitation for American consumers.

By the same token, it would be rather
surprising if some foreign exporters did
not find that their cost of production
had increased, because unless they can
meet the new standards, they will not be
able to export to the United states.

This is an equal-standards proposi
tion. The sole objective is to protect the
American consuming public. I hope that
that is clearly understood. If anyone
should suggest that the bill might tend to
undercut the Kennedy round, he had
better begin to do his homework, because
nothing in the ~ennedy round indicates
that we cannot establish standards for
the protection of quality and sanitation
of meat produots for American consum
ers. If the bilI provided higher stand
ards for imported products than for do
mestic products, that would be something
else. But it does not do anything of the
kind, and it is not intended that it should.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, as I have
said before, I think that the colloquy
has made clear the intent of the bill, be
cause we have had no hearings on the
amendment. I am satisfied that the man
ager of the bilI will in good faith seek to
carry out the basic thrust and intent,
which are to implement rather than to
add to the terms of the bilI.

EFFORT OF COMMITTEE ON FOR
EIGN RELATIONS TO HOLD PUB
LIC HEARINGS WITH TESTIMONY
FROM SECRETARY OF STATE
RUSK ON U.S. POLICIES IN SOUTH
EAST ASIA
Mr. GORE. Mr. President, will the Sen

ator from New Mexico yield 5 minutes to
me?

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I yield
5 minutes'to the Senator from Tennessee.

Mr. GORE. Mr. President, I ask unani
mous consent that I may speak on a non
germane subject and to have printed in
the RECORD certain letters.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. GORE. Mr. President, I wish brief
ly to lay before the Senate the record
of the effort of the Senate Foreign Rela
tions Committee and its chairman, Sen
ator fuLBRIGHT, to hold a public hearing
with testimony from the Honorable Dean
Rusk, Secretary of State, on U.S. policies
in Southeast Asia and in Vietnam par
ticularly.

It was nearly 2 years ago, on February
18, 1966, that the Secretary of State last
appeared before the Committee on For
eign Relations in public session to dis
cuss these policies with it and with the
American people. At that time, the Sen
ate will recall, there was a most fruitful
examination of our policies. These hear
ings were informative and aroused wide
spread public interest. There was a most
favorable public response, because these
hearings were education in the best sense
of the world.

On a few occasions since February of
1966, Secretary Rusk has been asked
questions about our Vietnam policies in
public sessions which have been devoted
primarily to other subjects such as for
eign aid and the Consular Convention
with the Soviet Union. The Secretary
has refused, however, to discuss policies
in Vietnam in public session with the
committee, which means that he has re
fused to testify before the committee in
public session and be interrogated by
members of the Foreign Relations Com
mittee in public session.

In my view, Mr. President, the people
have a right to know what our policies
are in Southeast Asia. What are the
goals of these policies? Are these goals
realistic? For what cause are young men
sent to fight and dIe? Is this truly in our
nationalinterest? What more important
questions than these should engage the
consideration of the committee? Upon
what graver subjects should there be
public communication between the ex
ecutive and legislative branches? How
can either the President or the Senate
discharge their respective responsibil
ities to the American people without
incisive public examination of these pol
icies and questions?

It might lie weIl to note, Mr. President,
that Secretary Rusk, Ambassador
Bunker, and General Westmoreland have
been interrogated on television. Indeed,
Secretary Rusk has been interrogated at
press conferences, by students at univer
sity appearances, on television, both for
eign and domestic. I do not criticize this.
Indeed, such appearances are commend
able, but they are neither to be compared
in probative value nor substituted for the
constitutional responsibilities involved in
public testimony at which responsible
and informed Senators can question and
examine responsible executive officials on
the validity of vital policies of war or
peace.

A student arising from an aUditorium
may be allowed one question and be given
a brief answer. A reporter at a press con
ference may be shushed with a no com
ment reply, but in testimony before the
Senate Foreign Relations Committee.
clothed with both constitutional duty
and powers, the questions can be ex
amined more incisively. The questions
both require and deserve careful and
thorough examination and, always con
sistent ''lith national security, need to be
examined to the fullest extent in the full
view of the American people.

Mr. President, there have been a num
ber of letters exchanged between Senator
fuLBRIGHT, chairman of the Senate For
eign Relations Committee, and Secretary
of State, Dean Rusk.

I list the efforts the committee has
made to persuade the Secretary that
such an appearance would be in the pub
lic interest.

On December 21, 1966, the chairman of
of the committee, Senator FuLBRIGHT,
wrote Secretary Rusk inviting him early
in 1967 and at his convenience to meet
with it to discuss "the progress of the
pacification program in Vietnam, recent
developments in Mainland China and
their relation to the war in Vietnam, our
military and economic activities in Thai
land" and certain other subjects. That
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On November 7, Secretary Rusk met
with the Committee on Foreign Rela
tions and for more than 3 hours discussed
not only his reluctance to appear before
the committee, but some, aspects of
American involvement in Vietnam.

At the end of that hearing the Secre
tary indicated that he wanted further
time to consider whether he would com
ply with the committee's request for a
public' hearing on Vietnam and" when
pressed for a time by which he might
decide whether tocomply with the com
mittee request, he said he would reply
promptly.

Mr. President, that commitment was
made on November 7. It is now Novem
ber 28, 3 weeks later.

Since February of 1966'11° member of
the administration has been willing to
meet in open session with elected repre
sentatives of the American people to dis
cuss the subject of Vietnam.

This fact speaks fOJ;" itself.
The Constitution' clearly places the

President of the United States and the
U.S. Senate ina position of limited part
nership with respeCt to U.S. foreign pol
icy, its formation and its conduct. What
other meaning can be assigned to the
provisions for advice and consent, pro
visions for the Armed Forces, ratifica
tion, confirmation, et, cetera? The Sec
retary of State is an agent of the Presi
dent in this fie~d; the Senate Foreign
Relations Committee the agent. of the
U.S. Senate. "

I believe it is a matter of national im
portance that an equation of comity and
mutual responsibility betwe.en the Pl"esi
dent and the' Senate be preserved and
promoted. It is for this reason that I have
been patient, but pressing. I believe it is
for this reason that the Senate Foreign
Relations Committee has been patient,
but pressing. I hope that before the meet
ing tomorrow the committee will have an
affirmative reply from Secretary Rusk,
If not, it is my purpose then to renew
my motion to instruct and authorize the
chairman of the committee to communi
cate directly to President Johnson the
committee's concern over the threatened
breakdown In communication and public
dialog between the Executive and the
Senate.

MESSAGE FROM THE ,HOUSE
A message from, the House of Repre

sentatives by Mr.. Bartlett; one .of Its
reading clerks, announced that the
House had disagreed to the amendments
of the .Senate to the bill <H.R. 6111) to
provide for the establishment of a Fed
eral Judicial Center; asked a conference
with the Senate on the disagreeing votes
of the two Houses thereon, and that Mr.
CELLER, Mr. RODINO, Mr: ROGERS of Col..
orado, Mr. MACGREGOR, and Mr. MCCLORY
were appointed managers on the part of
the House at the conference.

FEDERAL MEAT INSPECTION ACT
The Senate resumed the consideration

of the bill (S. 2147) to clarify a.nd other..
wise amend the Meat Inspection Act, to
provide for cooperation with a.ppropriate
State agencies with respect to Staten;te,at

inspection programs, and for other pur
poses.

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I yield
myself 1 minute.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from New Mexico is recognized for
1 minute.

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, the
Senator from Nebraska and I have dis
cussed his amendment. We also dis
cussed it before it was offered, and, we
have been discussing it since it has been
offered.

In view of the colloquy that has taken
place and the discussions that we have
indulged, in, I am willing to accept the
amendment. on behalf of the committee.

Mr. President, I yield back the re
mainder of my time.

Mr. HRUSKA. Mr. President, I yield
back the remainder of my time.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. All time
having expired, the question is on agree
ing to the amendment, as modified, of the
Senator from Nebraska.

The amendment was agreed to.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The bill

is open to further amendment.
Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Mr. Presi

dent, I suggest the absence of a quorum,
and I ask unanimous consent that the
time be charged equally against both
sides.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered, and the clerk
will. call the roll.

The assistant legislative clerk pro
c€.edc'd to call the roll.

Mr. HANSEN. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the order for the
quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

Who yields time?
Mr. MONTOYA. I yield 5 minutes to

the Senator from Wyoming.
Mr. HANSEN. Mr. President, I will

vote for the pending legislation. Before
doing so, however, I wish to make clear
my interpretation of the bill as reported
by the Senate Committee on Agriculture.

Yesterday, a stimulating debate was
entered into on the Senate floor by Sen
ator MONTOYA, Senator MONDALE, Sen
ator MILLER, Senator HRUSKA, and my
self, concerning Federal inspection of
foreign meats which are importEd into
this C::luntry. I will not deal further with
that quest:on today.

Another question remains t:J be clari
fied, however, after a study of the Senate
committee's report. This question centers
around, Federal-State regulation of in
trastate products. In my opinion, the
Senate committee, in its report, failed
to adequately define interstate commerce.
We are forced, therefore, to go back t:J
the clear action taken by the House Com
mittee on Agriculture, when it met the
commerce question head-on.

Reading from the House committee
report, on page 3, I note that-

As the committee developed this legisla
tIon it found three basIc approaches avaIlable
to meet the need for adequate consumer
protectIon.

The first alternatiL'e was to expand Federal
InspectIon servIces to all Intrastate slaugh
tering and processIng facillties. This ap
proach would have ellminated State inspec
tIon programs and assIgned the responsi-

billty for strictly State and local health
protectIon exclusively to the Federal Gov
ernment. The committee rejected, by a 29
to-5 vote, a substitute bill which would have
given the Federal Government direct inspec
tion authority over a large area of the intra
state slaughter and processing of meats by
assuming that any persons, firm, or establish
ment doing more than $250,000 annual busi
ness within a State would have substantial
effect on interstate commerce, regardless of
whether the prod1tct moved across a State

line. • • •

In supporting this bill, it is my view
that State regulation of intrastate activ
ity should remain intact. The Secretary
should be under no illusion that his
power to regulate extends to intrastate
plants where such plants are properly
covered by State regulations which are
at least equal to the Federal inspection
system. The Secretary's regulatory ac
tivity, therefore, should extend only to
those States which fail to develop an in
spection system as set out in the pending
bill.

It is my hope that the House-Senate
conferees will meet the question of State
versus Federal regulatory power in a
head-on and forthright fashion. If this is
done, much of the confusion which at
tends the present Senate version of the
bill can be dispelled. I am sure that the
conferees will agree that there should be
no preemption by the Federal Govern
ment of the jurisdiction of the States
over intrastate commerce, except in the
specific areas that I have outlined here.

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I yield
to the Senator from Utah such time as
he may require. \

'Mr. MOSS. I thank the Senator from
New Mexico.

I wish to propound two or three ques
tions to the manager of the bill. First, I
wish to commend the Senator from New
Mexico and the Senator from Minnesota
for the fine work they have done in this
most important field. It is a field of great
concern, because the health of our coun
try must be guarded, and this is a gov
ernmental function.

As we become more urban, and as we
move around more, there is less oppor
tunity for the individual to take the nec
essary steps to safeguard the purity of
his food, especially meat. So this is a
field that certainly requires the atten
tion of government, and it must be
brought into focus in order to protect the
health of the people of our country.
Some of the information that has de
veloped in the course of the hearings and
the discussion of this bill would indicate
that some problem areas, without doubt,
must be corrected.

First, may I ask the Senator from New
Mexico whether I am correct in my un
derstanding that the bill applies only to
the traditional meat animals-that is,
meat that is sold in commercial chan
nels-and that it does not apply to the
dressing or processing of game meat,
such as deer, elk, and animals of that
type.

Mr. MONTOYA. The Senator's under
standing is correct. The bill contains a
specification as to what animals are en
compassed in its provisions, and game
animals are not included.

Mr. MOSS. I thank the Senator.
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I have had some correspondence with

the chairman of the State board of agri
culture in Utah, who has expressed some
concern about various parts of the bill.

In Utah, we have a system of meat in
spection which is administered by the
State, and it seems to me that this SyS
tem is adequate now. The chairman of
the agriculture commission is concerned
about the many small slaughterhouses
that exist in the State. Some of these
operate 3 days a week or less, and he is
concerned lest the requirements of this
bill would so change the conditions that
many of these small plants would not
be able to meet the requirements and
would have to be closed.

Is there an answer to him with respect
to this question?

Mr. MONTOYA. Yes. There is no rea
son for this fear on the part of the Secre
tars' of Agriculture of the State of Utah,
because the State of Utah has a manda
tory inspection law Which, if enforced
adequately, satisfies the criteria in the
bill and will permit the State of Utah to
continue with its state enforcement sys
tem, as it is doing at present. The bill
specifically provides that this may be
done.

If the State of Utah continues with its
mandatory inspection system, with en
forcement equivalent to Federal enforce
ment, no provision in the bill would bring
these small plants under the Federal
inspection system.

However, if the State of Utah does not
enforce its State law and permits some
of these small plants to sell meat that
is not wholesome, the Federal inspectors
will catch that plant eventually.

An additional safeguard is provided,
in that the Secretary of Agriculture, ,at
the national level, before he brings this
violating plant under the Federal in
spection system will certify the violations
he has found to the Governor of the
State and the State advisory committee
or whoever the person might be who is in
charge of State enforcement for meat
inspection purposes, and say to him, first,
"Correct what is going on in your State
in plant A. This is what we found."

If they do not do it, if they do not have
any corrective measures applied, the Sec
retary of Agriculture under the bill would
be obligated to take that plant under
Federal inspection not ad infinitum, but
until such time as in his discretion he
can turn this plant back over to the State
with the assurance that adequate local
inspection will protect the consumer.

Mr. MOSS. Do I understand from the
statement of the Senator that the Fed
eral Government, in determining wheth
er or not the State is doing an adequate
job of inspection and assuring Whole
some meat, looks to the end result of the
product that comes out rather than turn
ing attention on the number of feet of
fioor space and the physical layout?

Mr. MONTOYA. The Senator is cor
rect. Yesterday we had a colloquy on the
fioor of the Senate with respect to that
proposition and I made a statement that
the Secretary of Agriculture has not to
this day, although he has the authority,
imposed any architectural requirements
upon those who are under the inspection
system of the Federal Government. It is

not the intention of the bill to exact any
innovation to conform with architectural
requirements on the part of the Secre
tary of Agriculture.

There is no such requirement in the
bill. In fact, there is a legislative history
on pages 3 and 4 of the committee re
port which specifically clarifies this par
ticular point as I have explained it.

Mr. MOSS. Mr. President, will the Sen
ator yield for one other question?

Mr. MONTOYA. I yield.
Mr. MOSS. The bilI provides for Fed

eral matching funds to enable States to
improve and continue their inspection
systems. What is the answer to the criti
cism leveled that a State really by refus
ing to do any of this work will then get
Federal inspection brought in, paid for
entirely by the Federal Government,so
that they will get a full 100-percent serv
ice in this area without any State money,
as against another State, such as Utah,
which has an inspection system and now
expends $160,000 a year in inspection
money? Is there equilty there?

Mr. MONTOYA. I may say that there
is no other way we can protect the Amer
ican consumer except the way we are
doing it here unless we have mandatory
inspection across the board. That is the
other alternative.

Under our constitutional form of gov
ernment, the pOlice pOwer rests in the
State governments and the States. We
are trying to gO in under the interstate
commerce clause because we feel the
States have not assumed complete re
SpOnsibility of their pOlice power func
tions in protecting the consumers of this
Nation.

We are saying, in effect, to the States,
"While some of you have assumed pOlice
powers adequate to protect consumers,
we want you to do this and we will help
you. We will provide facilities and money
on the part of' the Federal Government
to help you update inspection services
for the protection of consumers. But if
you do not do it, we are going to go in
on behalf of the consumer and do it
under the interstate commerce clause."

Actually, a progressive State such as
the State of the senator from Utah, with
mandatory inspection, will never see the
day when the Federal Government wlll
step in to take it over if it continues to
enforce its meat inspection laws.

Mr. MOSS. I concede that this is a
rather farfetched hypothetical situation
to presume that a State would be so
derelict in its governmental function to
ward its own citizens that it would not be
willing to move into this field. However,
the question was raised and I am happy
that the Senator has answered the ques
tion. I am sure that my State wants to
continue and that it will continue in this
field, and Federal supplementary finan
cial aid would be welcomed by the State.
I would not suppose there would be any
States which would refuse entirely to
bear their fair share.

Mr. MONDALE. Mr. President, wlll
the Senator yield?

Mr. MOSS. I am glad to yield to the
Senator.

Mr. MONDALE. We had tried to deal
With this problem in the deliberations in
connection with the bill because we

really had three alternatives available to
us if we begin with the pOsition that
there could be no compromise with Fed
eral health. First,wecould immediately
impOse a Federal inspection system on
all meat processed, which was my pro...
pOsal; second, we could give the States
the opportunity to continue'to maintain
jurisdiction over intrastate. plants if
they maintained a SYstem at least equal
to the Federal sYstem,; which was the
prOpOsal of the Senator from New Mex
ico [Mr. MONTOYA] : and third, we could
force them todci so without any help
whatsoever. A legal tool could be devised
to require that.

It seems to me that what some States
are saying is that noneof those systems
is adequate. Itis a fine debating pOint,
but no matter which way we moved, we
found ourselves with some logical dim
culty.

Under the proposal here today, .it is
possible for the state to say, "Why
should we assume our responsibility and
pay one-half of the cost for an inspection
system when by waiving the. time, we
can have the Federal Government come
in and do it at their expense."

Our first assumption is that most
States have more pride than that. Most
of them will take the help offered to do
a good Job. Speaking only for myself, if
we find some States have so little respect
for their State systems, that they waive
it, we should take anotherlocik at it, so
that we are not rewarding those States
that do not have the pride I think they
should have in their own Jurisdictions.

The reaction of my State has been one
of basic approval, except for the Gov
ernor. They feel as do most States, that
the aid we are Offering here will give
them the tool they need. Their attitUde
has not been,"We will give up."

Mr. MOSS. I thank the Senator. I com
mend him' and the Senator from New
Mexico for their leadership. I suppOrt the
bill before us.

Mr. President,I yield the fioor.
Mr. MONTOYA. I thank the Senator

from Utah.
Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I have

one question and then, if the Senator
will yield, I wish to propose a unanimous
consent request,

Mr. MONTOYA. I yield.
Mr. MANSFIELD. I think I know the

answer to the question I shall ask be
cause I have discussed it with the dis
tinguished Senator" from New Mexico
[Mr. MONTOYA], themanager of the blll,
and the distinguished Senator from
Minnesota [Mr. MONDALEl, who is the
cosponsor of the bill now before us. How
ever, I think it would be well to have
the answer in the RECORD.

I .am .in receipt, of a telegram from
Buren Bonine, Miles City, Mont., which
reads as follows:

Please make sure Federal meat inspection
bill presently before the Senate inclUdes
imported meat.

Would the Senator care to make com
ment for the RECORD on that question?

Mr. MONTOYA. Yes. We have in the
bill a very strong provision with respect
to imported meat which varies from the
existing authority which the Secretary of
Agriculture has under the Tariff Act. We
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have also adopted an amendment this
morning whIch would require the Secre
tary of Agriculture to file an exhaustive
and complete report with respect to im
ported meat.

Mr. MANSFIELD. That Is very satis
factory.

Wlll the Senator now yield so that I
may propound the unanimous-consent
request?

Mr. MONTOYA. I yield.
UNANIMOUS-CONSENT REQUEST

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the vote on the
pending measure take place at 2: 15 this
afternoon.

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr.
TYDINGS in the chair). Is the Senator
asking that rule XII be suspended for
that purpose?

Mr. MANSFIELD. Yes; that the rule
be suspended.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. MANSFIELD. I thank the Senator
for yielding. .

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The bill
is open to further amendment. If there
be no further amendment to be proposed,
the question is, on the engrossment and
third reading of the bill.

The blll was ordered to be engrossed
for a. third reading, and was read the
third time. . . . .

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Pursuant
to the unanimous-consent agreement en
tered yesterday, the Committee on Agri
culture and Forestry is discharged from
further consideration of H.R. 12144. The
Senate, .under the agreement, will now
proceed to the, consideration of HR.
12144, which the clerk wlll state.

The ASSISTANT LEGISLATIVE CLERK. A
blll (H.R. 12144) to clarify and otherwise
amend the Meat Inspection Act, to pro
vide for cooperation with appropriate
State agencies with respect to State
meat inspection programs, and for other
purposes.

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I move
to strike ·outall after the enacting clause
and substitute the language of S. 2147,
as amended, therefor.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The ques
tion is on agreeing to the motion of the
Senator from New Mexico.

The motion was agreed to, and the
Senate proceeded to consider the House
bill.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. If there
be no further amendment to be proposed,
the question is on the engrossment of
the amendment and the third reading of
the bill.

The amendment was ordered to be en
grossed and the bill to be read a third
time.

The blll was read the third time.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen

ator from New Mexico has the floor.
Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I sug

gest the absence of a quorum.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The clerk

will call the roll.
The bill clerk proceeded to call the roll.
Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask

unanbnous consent that the order for
the quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Mr. Pres
ident, I rise in support of the bill now
before us. There can be no question of
the value of proper and effective inspec
tion of all meats that are to be sold to
the public for human consumption.

Just the other day I read of some 70
persons in a South American country who
were killed by food poisoning because a
pesticide had accidentally fallen onto
flour that was used for bread.

The same sort of massive outbreak of
food poisoning, sickness, disease, and
death could occur in this country when
ever sick or diseased animals are permit
ted to be slaughtered and then sold for
food.

Federal officials now inspect all meat
which is shipped across State lines. This
accounts for about three-quarters of all
the meat sold in the United States.

However, the other 25 percent is not
inspected by Federal authorities. And, in
seven States it is not inspected by State
authorities. Twelve other States, as the
Senate report on this bill points out, have
only voluntary inspection laws. And, we
are informed by the Department of Ag
riculture, that no State has an adequate
enforcement program.

The bill now before us will aid those
States which do have meat inspection
laws to more speedily and effectively
carry out their statutes. The bill will also
encourage those States which do not have
such laws to pass them as speedily as
possible.

Further, the provisions of this bill will
give the various States up to 3 years to
bring their laws and inspection standards
up to those set by the Federal Govern
ment. I feel this is a fair compromise.

To require immediate compliance
with all Federal standards would impose
an enormous burden on the meatpack
ing industry; and

It would work an extreme hardship
on those packing plants whose owners
would be more than willing to bring
their operations into line with the new
laws if only they were given sufficient
time to do so.

So, this bill allows them 2 years to
comply. Yet, I feel, it does not compro
mise the public's need to be assured that
meat products bought are pure and
safe and wholesome.

For it provides Federal inspectors the
authority to inspect and regulate those
plants which ship food that is clearly
dangerous to the public.

I would like to add that I am proud
that my State of West Virginia is one of
the 29 States which have been far
sighted enough to enact legislation call
ing for the mandatory inspection of
meat. In matters of this nature, we can
never be too careful.

In conclusion, I wish to commend the
Senator from New Mexico [Mr. MON
TOYA] and the Senator from Minnesota
[Mr. MONDALE] on the good work they
have performed and the excellent lead
ershipthey have demonstrated in bring
ing this important bill to the floor. I
thank them for a job well done.

Mr. BREWSTER. Mr. President, as
an original cosponsor of Senator MON
TOYA'S bill, S. 2147. I wish to voice my
support for the bill as amended by the
Senate Committee on Agriculture and

Forestry. This measure not only insures
the States' right to act, but encourages
their· action. In addition, it authorizes
the Federal Government to financially
participate in State meat inspection
programs.

It is shocking that seven States, in
cluding my home State of Maryland,
have no statewide meat inspection laws.
This fact was pointed up when Joseph
Anastasi, president of the Maryland
Junior Chamber of Commerce, testified
before the House Subcommittee on Live
stock and Feed Grains. He pointed out
that only 26 out of 175 meatpacking and
processing plants in Maryland were un
der Federal inspection, He went on to
report that approximately 32 percent of
the animals slaughtered in Maryland for
human consumption were slaughtered by
'plants that did not· operate under Fed
eral inspection.

The Legislative Council of Maryland's
General' Assembly recently considered a
State meat inspection program which
it will recommend to the legislature for
action next January. This undoubtedly
represents a positive for~ard step.

.The legislation we are considering here
today would authorize the Federal Gov
ernment to, financially assist Maryland,
or any other State, in the development
and operation of its own inspection pro
gram.

So far, I have only referred to that
section which has generated the most
discussion and publicity. Equally impor
tant, however, are those provisions which
revise and clarify the Federal Meat In
spection Act. This law, enacted by the
Congress 61 years ago, has only ha.d one
minor amendment during those mter
vening years while the meat industry has
changedl'adically in both size and struc
ture.

I believe the Senate should support the
committee's recommendations so that
the. American housewife may continue
to purchase federally inspected meat se
cure in the knowledge that it will be
safe for her family to eat. At the same
time this measure wlll effectively close
existing loopholes that permit spoiled or
diseased meat products to reach the
shelves of the neighborhood grocery
store.

Mr. KENNEDY of New York. Mr.
President, I rise in support ?f the
strengthened Montoya-Mondale bill. Up
dating and strengthening of meat inspec
tion regulations are long overdue.

Congressional hearings and other pub
lic attention to the problem have shown
us that too many Americans can still
buy unwholesome and unsanitary meat
in the grocery store where they regularly
shop. The approach reflected in the
legislation before us is careful at,ld rea
sonable. By its enactment we Will take
a large step toward eliminating a health
hazard which endangers too many Amer
ican consumers.
INSPECTION OF BEEF FOR THE KOSHER MARKET

Mr WILLIAMS of New Jersey. Mr.
President traditionally and historically
the meat' inspectors inspecting beef go
ing to the kosher market have been per
mitted to use flashlights to perform this
task. A short time ago, however, regula
tions were promulgated by the Depart-
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11.6
12.4
14.5
2.1
.2

During
calendar
year 1972

4.1
4.9
6.5
8.0
9.7

10.3
II. 9
2.1
.2

Ouring
calendar
year 1971

"Zones

6

$0.80 $0.80 $0.80 $0.80
I. 07 ·1.14 1.18 I. 24
I. 34 I. 47 I. 55 I. 68
1.62 I. 79 I. 91 2.08
1.90 2. II 2.27 2.48
2.18 2.43 2.63 2.88
2.46 2.75 2.99 3.28
2.74 3.07 3.35 3.68
3.02 3.39 3.71 ',4.08

3.5
4.1
5.3
6.5
7.7
8. I
9.4
2. I
.2

Ouring
calendar
year 1970

$0.80
I. 02
I. 23
I. 48
1.73
1.98
2.23
2.48
2.73

2.9
3.3
4.1
4.9
5.7
6,0
6.9
2.0
.2

Rate per pound __ I. 3
Minimum charge per piece__ .2

"(a) ExC!:lpt as provid!:ld 'in ilectloli 4304 of
this title and sUbsectl()n (b). Of this s!:lction,
the. rate ,of postag!:l, on dom!:lsticairmall
weighing not more than 7 ounces is 10 cents
for each ounce or fraction th!:lr!:lof.

"(b) The rate of postag!:l on each postal
card and post card s!:lntas dom!:lstlc airmail
is 8 cents....

(b) Subs!:lction (d) of section 4303 of title
39, United States Code, is amended-

(1) by striking out paragraph (1) and in
serting in lieu thereof the following:

"(I) The rates of postage on air parcel post
are based on the eight zones described in sec
tlon4553, Or prescribed pursuant to section
4558, of this title in accordance with the
following tables:

$0.80
.98

1.16
1.40
I. 64
1.88
2.12
2.36
2.60

During
calendar
year 1969

"[I n cents]

2.4
2.6
3.0
3.4
3.8
3.9
4.3
1.9
.2

Rale

$0.48
.50
.56
.64
.72
.80.";

"During
calendar
year 1968

"(2) The postage on an issue of a publica
tion referred to in paragraph (I), the ad
vertising portion of which does not exceed
10 per centum of such issue, shall be com
puted without regard to the rates applicable
to the advertising portion prescribed in such
paragraph.

"(e) The postage on classroom publica
tions, mailed In accordance with section
4359(a) of this title, Is 60 per centum of the
postage computed in accordance with sec
tion 4359 (b) of this title.

"(f) The postage shall be 4.2 cents per
pound on the advertising portion of publlca-

Rate per pound:
Advertising portion:

Zones I and 2 __ "
Zone 3. .. __ . .. __
Zone 4 .: ....... ' __ '"
Zone 5 __ .. __ c __ .. ", .
Zone 6. __ .. __ _.... __ ..
Zone 7 __ .,.,.
Zone 8 __ __ . __ . __ .. __ "

Nonadvertising portion. __ __ .. __ .. __ .
Minimum charge per piece __ .

local and zones 1,2, and 3 ..
Zone 4 , .. __ . __ '" __ .
Zone 5 __ " __ .
Zone 6 __ _.. __ .
Zone 7 , .
Zone 8 __ .. " .. __ . __ . __

"Zones

For each pound or fraction of a pound in
excess of five pounds in weight, the addi
tional postage Is as follows:

Not over I lb., _. _ _ """ .
Over I lb. but not over U~ Ibs __ __ .
Over lYo Ibs. but not over 2Ibs. __ __ .
Over 2 Ibs. but not over 2Yo Ibs " .
Over 2Yo Ibs. but not over 3 Ibs.. ' __ ..
Over 3 Ibs. but not over 3Yolbs. __ __ . __ .
Over 3Yolbs. but not over 4Ibs c __ __
Over 4 Ibs. but not over 4% Ibs.. __ __ .
Over 4)1/bs. but not over 5Ibs. __ . __ .. __ . __ __

and
(2) by deleting paragraph (2).
(c) Section 4303 (f) of .title 39, United

States Code, Is amended by striking out "the
Virgin Islands or the Canal Zone" wherever
appearing therein and inserting in lieu
thereof "or the Virgin Islands".

(d) Section 4301(2) of title 39, United
States Code, is amended by striking out the
word "eight" and inserting in lieu thereof
the figure "7".

SECOND-CLASS ~AIL PREFERRED RATES

SEC. 103. (a) Section 4358 of title 39, United
States Code, Is amended-

(b) Section 4251 (a) of the title 39, United
States Code, is amended by striking out "and
(4)" and Inserting In lieu thereof "(4) bills
and statements of account, and (5)".

(c) Subsection (d) of section 4251 of title
39, United States Code, relating to the defini
tion of drop letters, is repealed.

(d) The table of contents of chapter 59 of
title 39, United States Code, is amendedfby
striking out--
"4252. Weight limit."
and Inserting in lieu thereof
"4252. Size and weight limits....

Am~AIL

SEC. 102. (a) Subsections (a) and (b) of
section 4303 of title 39, United States Code,
are amended to read as follows:

POSTAL REVENUE AND FEDERAL
SALARY ACT OF 1967

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the pending bill
be laid aside temporarily and that the
Senate proceed to the consideration of
Oalendar No. 786, H.R. 7977, and ask
that it be stated.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The bill
will be stated by title.

The ASSISTANT LEGISLATIVE CLERK. H.R.
7977, to adjust certain postage rates, to
adjust the rates of basic compensation
for certain officers and employees in the
Federal Government, and to regulate the
mailing of pandering advertisements,
and for other purposes, reported with an
amendment.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Is there
objection to the present consideration of
the bill?

There being no objection, the Senate
proceeded to consider the bill, which had
been reported from the Committee on
Post Office and Civil Service, with an
amendment, strike out all after the en
acting clause and insert:

That this Act may be cited as the "Postal
Revenue and Federal Salary Act of 1967".

TITLE I-POSTAL RATES
FIRST-CLASS ~AIL

SEC. 101. (a) Sections 4252 and 4253 of title
39, United States Code, are amended to read
as follows:
"§ 4252. Size and weight limits

"The maximum size of first-class mall is
one hundred inches in length and girth com
bined and the maximum weight is seventy
pounds.
"§ 4253. Postage rates on first-class mall

"(a) Postage on first-class mall is com
puted separately on each letter or piece of
mail. Except as otherWise provided in this
section, the rate of postage on first-class mall
weighing thirteen ounces or less is 6 cents
for each ounce or fraction of an ounce.

"(b) First-class mall weighing more than
thirteen ounces shall be mailed at the rates
of postage established by section 4303(d) of
this title and shall be entltled to the most
expeditious handling and transportation
practicable.

"(c) The rate of postage for each single
postal card and for each portion ofa double
postal card, Including the cost of manUfac
ture, and for each post card and the Initial
portion of each double post card conforming
to section 4251 (C) of this title Is 5 cents.

"(d) The rate of postage on business reply
mall is the regular rate prescribed In this
section. together with an additional charge
thereon of 2 cents for each piece weighing
two ounces or less and 5 cents for each piece
weighing more than two ounces. The postage
and charge shall be collected all delivery....

ment of Agriculture which excluded the
use of flashlights in this inspection, The
senior Senator from Oregon [Mr. MORSE]
and I did a thorough study and exami
nation of this question and concluded
that this prohibition was arbitrary and
unnecessary. We, therefore, urge that
the regulation be changed in such a man
ner as to permit the use of flashlights
for the inspection of beef in this small
area of kosher foods.

Mr. MONDALE. Mr. President, I would
like to join the Senator from New Jersey
and the Senator from Oregon in urging
that the Secretary of Agriculture study
this problem in order to determine if
it can be alleviated by a change in the
regulations.
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Mr. MONRONEY. Television and ra

dio have made it imperative almost for
even the smallest country editors to put
mail L'1. the back of their cars and run it
to more extreme outposts S:J that it can
be delivered the same day. They are re
lying less and less on the mail.

Mr. HOLLAl'.'D. Would other out-of
county rate increases be effective imme
diately or would they be spread over a
term of three years?

Mr. MONRONEY. They are spread over
3 years.

If they have less than 5,000 out-of
county it goes from one-half cent or
five-tenths of a cent to eight-tenths of
a cent per piece.

Mr. HOLLAND. It would appear to me
from the figures the Senator has stated.
and I appreciate it and thank the Sen
ator, that the rural county home-town
paper, generally published at the county
seat, is still given a decided preference in
rates in contrast to the large newspapers.

Mr. MONRONEY. The cost coverage
is the test under the uniform cost ac
counting system.

The county paper has been paying 13
percent and they will only pay 14 per
cent of the cost coverage under the bill.
While the larger second-class regular
paper will go from 29 percent to 33 per
cent cost coverage.

The Senator will see that the bigger
and more capable they are the greater
the charge, but still it is a highly sub
sidized rate no one could afford to gbe
except the Government, and that is be
cause of public service features contained
therein.

Mr. HOLLAND. I thank the distin
guished Senator.

FEDERAL MEAT INSPECTION ACT
The Senate resumed the considera

tion of the bill (H.R. 12144) to clarify
and otherwise amend the Meat Inspec
tion Act, to provide for cooperation with
appropriate State agencies with respect
to State meat inspection programs, and
for other purposes.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Under
the previous unanimous-consent agree
ment, the Senate will now proceed to
vote on final passage of H.R. 12144.

Mr. DIRKSEN. Mr.> President, before
the roll is called, I thought attention
should be called to the similarity in the
House bill and the Senate bill, and I
would like to have those views presented
before the roll is called.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
Chair is reluctant to advise the distin
guished Senator that there is no way
we can so proceed. There is a unani
mous-consent order and the hour of
2: 15 having arrived, we are instructed
to call the roll.

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I
ask unanimous consent that the unani
mous-consent agreement entered into
be vacated temporarily.

Mr. RUSSELL. Mr. President, what is
the request?

Mr. DIRKSEN. To put in the similar
ities before the roll is called.

Mr. RUSSELL. All right.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the

Senator from Montana, the distin
gUished majority leader, ask that rule
XII be suspended for that purpose?

Mr. MANSFIELD. Yes.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Is there

objection? The Chair hears no objec
tion, and it is so ordered.

Mr. DffiKSEN. Mr. President. I sub
mit the views alluded to. That is all.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection the material will be printed in
the RECORD.

The views presented by Mr. DIRKSEN,
are as follows:

It is encouraging to note the substantial
area of agreement between the House of Rep
resentatives and the Senate Committee on
Agriculture with respect to legislation on
meat inspection. The Senate Committee nat
urally believes that it has strengthened and
improved the measure, and there does not
seem to be any general disagreement with
this contention even though some reserva
tions have been expressed about two of the
Committee amendments. The fact that major
provisions of the two bills are identical serves
to contradict those critics Who have asserted
that the House passed a weak bill. Those
who might believe that can be suspected of
not having carefully studied the provisions
of the Purcell Bill. Will Rogers used to say
that all he knew was what he read in the
papers. In the field of legislation that isn't
enough. Informative as the press is, one must
go further and read the fine print.

A quick summary may be in order for the
purpose of reviewing those provisions com
mon to both the House and Senate bills and
which do provide a sound basis for strength
ening and updating the Federal Meat In
spection Act.

Title I in the two bills is identical. This
title would "update" the terminology of the
Meat Inspection Act to bring it into con
formity with the provisions of the Food,
Drug, and Cosmetic Act and the Poultry
Products Inspection Act. This title would
give the Department of Agriculture specific
authority to require inspection and to reg
ulate such matters as labellng and packag
ing. ActUally this title in practical elIect sim
ply confirms the authority of the Department
to continue the type of control it has exer
cised for many years under the more general
language of the present Meat Inspection
Act. It has been noted that the authority
over labeling and packaging is more exten
sive than that prOVided by the Fair Packaging
and Labeling Act over which Congress la
bored so diligently for such a long time. There
is no controversy concerning this title. It
tends to confirm the often made statement
that federal meat inspection as it has oper
ated has indeed provided a high degree of
consumer protection-more complete, in fact,
than for any other food with the possible ex
ception of poultry.

It should be observed in passing that the
provisions relating to imported meat, con
tained in Title I, are identical in the two
bills. In brief, imported products are subject
to all the requirements and regUlations ap
plicable to domestic federally inspected
products.

Title II of the proposed legislation is sub
stantially identical in the Senate and House
bills. The purpose of this title is to give the
Secretary of Agriculture needed additional
authority to control the traffic in meat and
related products not qualified or SUitable for
human food. Chances are that those who
have criticized this legislation as being weak
have not thoroughly analyzed the provisions
of Title II. Briefiy, it would give the Secretary
of Agriculture authority to require denatur
ing or other identification of meat not suit
able for human consumption. The Secretary
would be given authority over meat packers,
processors, wholesalers, warehouses, trucl:ers,
importers, renderers, and animal food manu
facturers. This authority would be in addi
tion to that granted by Title I to conduct a
continuous inspection. It would require the
keeping of certain records and would permit

the Secretary to inspect premises, Inventory
and records. to copy records and to take sam
ples. Moreover, intrastate operators would be
covered in those situations where a state
did not have comparable authority or was
not exercising it in a manner calculated to
assure the pUblic of wholesome meat
products.

Title II of the bills also would require
brokers, renderers and animal fOOd manufac
turers to register with the Secretary of Agri
culture, who would additionally be given au
thority to issue regulations dealing with the
buying, selling, transportation or importa
tion of "4-D" animals.

Even without authority to conduct con
tinuous inspection in intrastate establlsh
ments, the Secretary would have tremen
dously broad authority under this title to
identify and control unwholesome meat prod
ucts regardless of whether they happened to
be moving in interstate or intrastate
commerce.

Title III of both bills deals with relation
ships between federal and state meat inspec
tion programs. In both bills, provision is
made for federal assistance to the states. This
inclUdes laboratory and other technical as
sistance. It includes federal financial assist
ance to the states up to 50 percent of the
cost of a state program.

Critics who have not studied the legislation
carefully have contended that the legislation
described thus far does not go far enough in
compelling states to improve their programs
if they choose not to do so. Hence, the Senate
Committee has approved several amendments
designed to put more teeth in the legislation.
One such amendment would enable the Sec
retary of Agriculture to require fUll federal
inspection in all establishments within a state
if within a period of two years the state faUed
to impose requirements at least equal to
those in elIect at federally inspected estab
lishments. Provision wouid be made for an
additional grace period of one year if assur
ance were provided that state action would be
taken. It seems necessary and desirable to put
teeth of this kind in the legislation. Another
Committee amendment would empower the
Secretary to take immediate action where it
may be determined that an intrastate estab
lishment is producing adUlterated meat or
meat food products that would endanger the
pUblic health. In such situations drastic ac
tion is called for.

A question has been raised wltn. respect
to the provision that would authorize the
governor of a state to waive the two-year
waiting period and request the Secretary of
Agriculture to take immediate action to re
qulre fUll federal inspection for establish
ments within the state. Not only would this
provision give to one man absolute power to
control the manner in which meat inspec
tion would be conducted within his state,
but It would also have the elIect of handing
him a blank check drawn on the United
States Treasury. It has been estimated that
there are in the country about 15,000 estab
llshments not presently under federal meat
inspection, and if the authority granted to
governors by this legislation were exercised
to pass responsib1l1ty to the federal govern
ment for any substantial proportion of them,
it would become Virtually impossible for the
Congress to anticipate appropriation needs.
The states, in the exercise of their pollee
powers, have an important part to play in
meat inspection; hence, it is extremely doubt
ful whether the federal government should
attempt to preempt all authority or to give
governors the kind of power that would
make it possible for them to shift their intra
state responsib1l1ties to the federal govern
ment.

Various estimates have been made of the
cost that would be involved in a federal take
over of all responsib1l1ty for meat inspection.
Chances are that it would come to at least
$100 mUllon, or more than twice the present
annual appropriation for federal Inspection.

Question also has been raised concerning
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So the bill (H.R. 12144) was passed.
Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I

move to reconsider the vote by which the
bill was passed.

Mr. HOLLAND. Mr. President, I move
to lay that motion on the table.

The motion to lay on the table was
agreed to.

Mr. MONTOYA. Mr. President, I move
that the Senate insist on its amendments,
request a conference with the House on
the disagreeing vote on the Senate
amendment to H.R. 12144, and that the
Chair appoint conferees on the part of
the Senate.

The motion was agreed to; and the
Presiding Officer appointed Mr. HOL
LAND, Mr. TALMADGE, Mr. BYRD of Vir
ginia, Mr. MCGOVERN, Mr. MONDALE, Mr.
MONTOYA, Mr. AIKEN, Mr. YOUNG of North
Dakota, Mr. BOGGS, and Mr. MILLER con
ferees on the part of the Senate.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, Senate bill 2147 is indefinitely
postponed.

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, the

THE WAR ON POVERTY PROGRAM
Mr. HART. Mr. President, those who

have been sniping from the congressional
rooftops at the war on poverty program
have today won a signal success in their
campaign of harassment.

Some 2,800 economic opportunity em
ployees today get paychecks half the
normal size-not quite a payless payday.
to be sure, but certainly enough of a
blow to convince them that they are not
one of the Congress favored agencies.

The pay cut will also be felt by 41,000
Job Corps trainees and some 4,000
VISTA volunteers who get sustenance
payments that are certainly not lavish
even when the fulI amount is delivered.

As we are all aware, this unhappy
no, I will say this shameful-situation
arises from congressional failure to pass
an authorization bill, an appropriation

Senator from New Mexico [Mr. MON
TOYA] and the Senator from Minnesota
[Mr. MONDALE] together share the high
commendation of the Senate for the
magnificent manner in which they joined
to assure the overwhelming acceptance
of the Federal Meat Inspection Act by
the Senate.

Yesterday, in his opening statement
supporting the passage of this bill, I
noted from the RECORD that Senator
MONTOYA referred to the time, energy,
wisdom and good judgment devoted by
Senator MONDALE to the task of arriving
at the best possible approach in estab
lishing an intrastate meat inspection
program. I am in full accord with those
sentiments. May I say in addition that
the distinguiRhed Senator from New
Mexico himself exhibited that same high
degree of dedication on this measure.
Together the Senator from New Mexico
and the Senator from Minnesota estab
lished themselves as a highly successful
combination. Together, they obtained
the Senate's near-unanimous approval
of a program that promises to further
protect every consumer in the United
States.

Similarly to be commended are the
Senator from Nebraska [Mr. HRUSKA]
and the Senator from Iowa [Mr.
MILLER]. They, along with Senator
CURTIS and Senator HANSEN, displayed a
broad knowledge and keen understand
ing of the many problems involved in
establishing an effective program for the
inspection of meat.

Other Senators also joined to assure
a lively and most thoughtful discussion
of the measure. Noteworthy were the
contributions of the distinguished Sena
tor from Colorado [Mr. ALLOTT], the
distinguished Senator from Florida [Mr.
HOLLAND], the distinguished Senator
from Texas [Mr. YARBOROUGH] and many
others.

Finally, to Senator MONTOYA, to Sena
tor MONDALE, and to the Senate as a
whole goes the deep appreciation of the
leadership for assuring first what I am
confident will be a workable program for
intrastate meat inspection and secondly,
for cooperating to diSpOse of the measure
with such a high degree of efficiency.

NAY8-2
Talmadge

NOT VOTING-9
Fulbright Scott
Hartke Symington
McIntyre Tower

Russell

Cooper
Dodd
Ellender

Aiken
Allott
Anderson
Baker
Bartlett
Bayh
Bennett
Bible
Boggs
Brewster
Brooke
Burdick
Byrd, Va.
Byrd, W. Va.
Gannon
Carlson
Case
Church
Clark
Cotton
Curtis
Dirksen
Dominick
Eastland
Ervin
Fannin
Fong
Gore
Griffin
Gruenlng

the Senator from Missouri [Mr. SYMING
TON] are necessarily absent.

I further announce that, if present and
voting, the Senator from Louisiana [Mr.
ELLENDER], the Senator from Indiana
[Mr. HARTKE], and the Senator from
Missouri [Mr. SYMINGTON] would each
vote "yea."

Mr. KUCHEL. I announce that the
Senator from Kentucky [Mr. COOPER]
and the Senator from Texas [Mr.
TOWER] are absent on official business.

The Senator from Pennsylvania [Mr.
SCOTT] is necessarily absent.

If present and voting, the Senator
from Pennsylvania [Mr. SCOTT] and the
Senator from Texas [Mr. TOWER] would
each vote "yea."

The result was announced-yeas 89,
nays 2, as follows:

[No. 351 Leg.]

YEAS-89
Hansen Monroney
Harris Montoya
Hart Morse
Hatfield Morton
Hayden Moss
Hickenlooper Mundt
Hill Murphy
Holland Muskle
Hollings Nelson
Hruska Pastore
Inouye Pearson
Jackson Pell
Javlts Percy
Jordan, N.C. Prouty
Jordan, Idaho Proxmlre
Kennedy, Mass. Randolph
Kennedy, N.Y. Rlblcoff
Kuchel Smathers
Lausche Smith
Long, Mo. Sparkman
Long, La. Spong
Magnuson Stennis
Mansfield Thurmond
McCarthy Tydings
McClellan W1l11ams, N.J.
McGee Williams, Del.
McGovern Yarborough
Metcalf Young, N. Dak.
Miller Young, Ohio
Mondale

the need and desirablllty of providing a re
tail exemption for slaughtering and process
ing. It may be difficUlt for some to under
stand why the Committee which has worked
so dlllgently to tighten the proposed legisla
tion should find it desirable to open a large
loophole. Most retailers have little occasion
to move meat and meat products in inter
state commerce. If they do and if any kind
of exemption is found absolutely necessary,
it should not extend to slaughtering and the
manufacture of products normally produced
in meat packing plants. It should be llmited
strictly to grinding, chopping and cutting op
erations normally associated With meat re
talllng. Not only does an exemption open the.
door to abuses associated with unwholesome
meat, but It also tends to perpetuate the sale
of substandard products criticized during the
hearings for creating unfair competition for
products meeting federal standards.

Title IV of both the Senate and House bllls
provides penalties for Violations and gives to
the Secretary of Agriculture power to refuse
or Withdraw Inspection where operators have
been convicted of certain crimes.

The Secretary also would be given au
thority to seize or detain products that were
found to be adulterated or misbranded or
otherwise in violation of the Act. This repre
sents a broad extension of power and ac
tually is more authority than the Food and
Drug Administration presently has with re
spect to other foods. Incidentally, the power
of FDA would be retained.

States would be prohibited from Imposing
on federally Inspected establlshments re
quirements with respect to premises, faclll
ties, operations, labellng, packaging, and in
gredients that were in addition to or differ
ent from those of the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.

All In all, the proposed legislation provides
for a very comprehensive system of regUla
tion. The broad legislation passed by the
House of Representatives to strengthen both
federal and state inspection probably is a
better blll than its critics would lead the
public to believe. Amendments approved by
the Senate Committee on Agriculture have
provided some additional safeguards. As
noted, the authority that would be granted
to governors to act unilaterally to impose
federal inspection on all intrastate establish
ments is a doubtful delegation of power and
it would seem logical that any exemption
granted to retailers be limited to exclude
slaughtering and manufacturing operations.

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I ask
that the vote take place under the condi
tions previously cited.

Mr. ALLOTT. Mr. President, a parlia
mentary inquiry.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator will state it.

Mr. ALLOTT. May we ask what we are
voting on?

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The vote
is on final passage of H.R. 12144.

Mr. ALLOTT. The meat inspection
bill?

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator is correct.

On this question the yeas and nays
have been ordered, and the clerk will call
the roll.

The legislative clerk called the roll.
Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. I an

nounce that the Senator from Louisiana
[Mr. ELLENDER] and the Senator from
New Hampshire [Mr. MC~TYRE] are ab
sent on official business.

I also announce that the Senator from
Connecticut [Mr. DoDD], the Senator
from Arkansas [Mr. FuLBRIGHT], the
Senator from Indiana [Mr. HARTKE], and
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